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The Grove Plantation was built ca. 1828 by Dr. George Washington Morris. It was
acquired by John Berkeley Grimball in 1858 and remained in the Grimball family
until ca. 1920.

This two and one-half story clapboard and brick structure features a two-story
hexastyle piazza across the front (south) facade. The lower portion of the piazza
is supported by square brick pillars; the upper portion features slender Doric
polygonal columns with entasis. Entrance doors on both floors are flanked by

two windows with paneled shutters. The Tower entrance door features eight panels
and sidelights; the upper door with six panels is surmounted by a fanlight and

is flanked by sidelights. i

The rear (north) facade also features atwo-story hexastyle piazza of which the
lower level has five brick arches. The upper level was originally like that of
the front, but the end bays have been enclosed with 9/9 shuttered windows. Other
alterations to the rear include the addition of folding Touvered shutters to the
other three bays of the piazza, and the replacement of the far left window on the
lower level by a door. The upper level door features a transom while the lower
door has a transom and sidelights. Three gabled dormers illuminate the third
level on both the front and rear facades.

Both the east and west facades feature an octagonal, two-story bay which is flanked
to the north by two windows. Each end of the north portico has been enclosed with
flush-board siding and a 9/9 window. Brick voussoirs cap all the first level
windows, with the brickwork executed in Flemish bond. On the west facade, one of
the Tower windows has been replaced by a door.

A11 windows on the first floor are 6/6 with three-paneled shutters, while those on
the second story are 9/9, also with three-paneled shutters. Each gable displays

a dentated cornice and a 6/6 window with sidelights. Two interior chimneys straddle
the ridge of the tin gable roof.

Interior: The Grove contains twelve rooms and features four rooms divided by a
central hall on the first two floors. Notable are the two polygonal rooms on both
the first and second floors. On the Tower level, the polygonal rooms are paneled
to the chairrail. On the second floor, simply paneled wainscoting and dentated
cornices are found in all the rooms except for that on the northeast corner. The
mantels in the upper polygonal rooms are also notable being carved in an acanthus
leaf design, surrounded by marble, and flanked by fluted pilasters. Other mantels
are more simply carved, with gougework and fluted pilasters. Hallway doors feature
corner block medallions and moulded faces. The stairway has simply carved brackets
and extends from the first floor to the attic. (the stairway is not original, however).
The rooms on the third floor are without ornament.

Surroundings: Located in rural Charleston County, the Grove is approached by an
unpaved dirt road which culminates in an alley of oaks. The house is surrounded by a
large lTawn which includes numerous other live oaks. Immediately to the east are
several outbuildings of an undetermined age.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Grove Plantation, a late Federal-style structure featuring polygonal rooms,

was built ca. 1828 by George Washington Morris. After Morris's death ca. 1857,

the plantation became the property of John Berkeley Grimball (1800-1893), a planter
and member of the South Carolina Senate. Grimball is also noted as the author of a
diary (1832-1880) which offers insight into the transformation of a lowcountry
plantation from its apogee to its ruin during the War Between the States. Portions
of Grimball's diary have been published in the South Carolina Historical Magazine.

George Washington Morris probably built the Grove ca. 1828. (Architectural analysis
supports this date of construction.) Morris died ca. 1857, and the inventory of

his estate records a working plantation of approximately 1112 acres (400 acres being
rice land) and 136 slaves. The furnishings of each room in the house were also
recorded in detail. The total value of the plantation amounted to $139,460.

John Berkeley Grimball acquired the Grove in 1858. Grimball was a graduate of
Princeton and a rice planter. Between 1832 and 1844 he served as a senator from
St. Paul's Parish. He also served as president of the Charleston Library Society
between 1871 and 1875. Between 1832 and 1880 Grimball maintained a diary which
reflects the life of an antebellum planter, the problems incurred during the War
Between the States, and the changes which followed the war. Items of particular
interest include descriptions of the planting and harvesting of rice, and the
problems of day-to-day 1iving during the War Between the States. Grimball also
records that during the war the basement of the Grove was shelled and two rooms
were damaged.

Architecture: The Grove is an excellent example of the late Federal period plantation
house in the lowcountry. Basically a raised cottage configuration, the house
incorporates the unusual feature of polygonal rooms with projecting symmetrical
polygonal bays into its plan. Equally refined proportions are found in the slender
Doric polygonal columns of the piazza, the acanthus leaf embellishments of the mantels,
and the dentated moldings of the cornices. Various alterations such as the curved
staircase and the enclosed ends of the north piazza have been sympathetic to the
original design of the house.
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The Grove Plantation consists of approximately 2,200 acres of which approximately

230 acres are being nominated. The property is bounded on the south by the Edisto
River, north by other Grove Plantation property, west by abandoned rice fields, and on
the east by high ground and abandoned rice fields (the property to the east and west
being additional Grove Plantation property). The boundaries of the nominated acreage
are clearly delineated on the accompanying topographic map. The nominated property

is in the shape of a rectangle and the four corners have been assigned the following
UTM coordinates: A 17/557380/3614340; B 17/557360/3613000; C 17/556600/3613080;

D 17/556600/3614320.

The nominated property includes several outbuildings (of undetermined ages) which have
been converted into residences and guest cottages. The acreage also includes old rice
fields (which extend to the river) and a working trunk which was used for irrigation.
As the historical significance of the Grove Plantation rests largely on its role as

a working rice plantation during the zenith of South Carolina's rice culture, it is
entirely appropriate that these evidences of the rice culture be included within the
nominated acreage,
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